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The Soo Line Depot in Wilton is a 1%-story frame structure without basement which
on its first site rested upon heavy wooden timbers laid directly on the ground ( at
its present location it has a concrete foundation). The clapboarded walls are painted
the traditional Soo Line colors (maroon base and yellow superstructure) and wooden
shingles stained black cover the combination hipped and gabled roof. The overhanging
eaves have an undersiding of matched boards and are supported on all elevations by
large carved brackets. The roof is broken on the southeast end by a gabled dormer
probably added at the time (1907) the 20 by 68-foot building was lengthened to 92
feet. The roof also carries a broad, low tower, vaguely pagoda-like with the corners
of its square base terminating in triangular weatherings and thus diminishing the
upper stage into an octagonal form. The whole is surmounted by a shallow, conical
roof with slightly flared eaves.

Directly beneath the tower is a pentagonal window which, when the building was
on its original location, gave the station agent visual access to trackside. North-
west of the window is a freight door with angled matched siding set in rails and
stiles and topped by a transom with radiating muntins. An identical door is on the
northwest elevation of the building, and conventional entrances are on the southwest
(facade) and northeast elevations.

The waiting room on the first floor of the interior is an ensemble of wooden
finish: exposed floors, molded baseboards, vertical board wainscoting, chair rail,
horizontal board upper walls, paneled doors, and beaded, matched board ceiling. A
ticket window with a wooden shelf on wrought-iron brackets opens up the wall between
the waiting room and the ticket agent's. office, which has finish similar to that of
the waiting room but without wainscoting. The Tedge of the pentagonal window in
the office provides working space above storage cabinets, and a fdlse arch in the
ceiling creates an alcove effect between the office and the freight room.

The interior of the depot has been largely stripped of accoutrements except for
venetian blinds; a single wooden bench with wrought-iron Tegs and -armrests; a large
wooden desk with drawers and tapered legs; a wall sink in the waiting room; and
restroom fixtures (the latter are believed to have been installed ca. 1925 and are
to be replaced during renovation.

An enclosed quarter-turn stairway with landing leads to the 3-room apartment
on the second floor which was formerly the station agent's 1iving quarters. (Un-
confirmed local tradition maintains that William D. Washburn occupied the apartment
during visits to Wilton, but it seems more likely that on such occasions he remained
aboard the private railroad car in which he traveled.) Walls and ceilings in the
apartment are p1astered, and the double windows in the gabled dormer are trimmed
with molded casings featuring carved corner blocks at top and bottom. A Tadder stair
gives access to the upper-stage of the tower, the walls of which have an octagonal
configuration and are sheathed in beaded boarding, as is the ceiling. In the latter
is a trapdoor to the attic. '
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Minneapolis, St. Paul and Sault Sainte Marie Railroad Company (Soo Line)
Depot in Wilton is historically significant for its association with William Drew
Washburn (1831-1912). It is architecturally distinctive for its incorporation of
a pagoda-like tower within what is otherwise a conventional design for a railroad
structure.

Born at Livermore, Maine, into a family active in politics and commerce,
William D. Washburn later moved to Minneapolis, where he was a member of the
Minnesota legislature. He was appointed surveyor general by President Abraham
Lincoln and was a member of the United States House of Representatives for three
terms and a United States Senator for six years. He built railroads and flour
and Tumber mills and was instrumental in developing the city of Minneapolis and
the Northwest.

Washburn was the first president of the .Soo.Line, resigning that position
following his election to the United States Senate from Minnesota. Defeated
in his re-election bid in 1896, he toured the Orient for two years and upon
his return to the United States purchased from the Northern Pacific Railroad
115,000 acres of land north of Bismarck and east of the Missouri River. To
make his lands more marketable to settlers, Washburn founded the Bismarck,
Washburn & Great Falls Railway which in 1899 began grading north from Bismarck.
Reaching Wilton in 1900, the road was built north to the town of Washburn the
following year and to Underwood in 1903. East of Wilton, William D. Washburn
opened a coal mine which, because of the quantity of lignite deposits available,
soon became one of the world's largest underground lignite mining enterprises.

Making Wilton the headquarters for his mining and land sale operations, Wash-
burn erected a depot alongside the railroad track in town. Designed by Minneapolis

architect William J. Keith, the structure is notable for a somewhat truncated tower

reminiscent of a pagoda, perhaps the result of Washburn's exposure to the architec-
ture of the Far East during his travels there.

In May, 1904, the Bismarck, Washburn & Great Falls Railway was acquired by the
S00 Line, and today the depot built by .Washburn is the only physical reminder of
that independent short line. The depot served Wilton until December, 1970, at
which time it was closed. It was initially feared that the building would there-
after be demolished since the railroad wanted the site vacated. However, local
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sentiment for saving it was organized during the Bicentennial year, with the result
that the Soo Line donated the building to the city, the city provided a site for
relocating it for use as a museum, and the North Dakota State Bicentennial Commission
allotted $3,000 for the project, which amount was matched by community funds.

In May, 1976, the depot was moved from its original location to its present
site several blocks northwest. The following month, on June 19, during Wilton's
Bicentennial Days, it was dedicated as a future community museum. Plans are to
restore the waiting room and offices to type, as well as the station agent's 11v1ng
quarters on the second floor; a museum of lignite coal mining will be installed in
the freight room. Sponsorship of the project has been assumed by the Lions' Club,
with other Tocal organ1zat1ons assisting, 1nc1ud1ng the Senior Citizens, American
Legion, and Homemakers' Club.



